
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (REP)
RFP NO. RFPI7C

ADDENDUM NO. I TO RFP NO. RFPI7C

Community Development Block Grant Program

Fiscal Year 2017

Honolulu, Hawaii
December 3, 2015

TO ALL PROSPECTIVE PROPOSERS:

REP No. RFP17C is hereby revised as follows:

Inclusion of questions received as of November 23, 2015, and the responses
provided.

Nelson H. Koy agi, Jr., Director
Budget and Fiscal Services

Aftachments:
Questions and Answers — November 23, 2015
Appendix C-4 — Statutory Worksheet



 

1 

CDBG Fiscal Year 2017 Request for Proposals 
Questions and Answers – November 23, 2015 

 
Q1. Do we need to submit more than one application if we propose to assist clientele 

that meet two national objectives?  Or would one application suffice? 
 
A1. If your organization will be providing services to clientele that meet two different national 

objectives, although not required, it is recommended that you submit two applications. 
 
Q2: Is there a minimum level of site control in order to be eligible for funding? 
 
A2. No, there is no minimum level of site control to be eligible for funding. However, 

readiness to proceed is one of the scoring criteria in the selection process.  Site control 
or lack thereof that could impede the implementation of a project will be taken into 
consideration during the scoring process. 

 
Q3. Is self-certification of income allowable?  There appears to be an inconsistency on 

this issue between the RFP and Appendix A (the application). Page 5 of the RFP 
states that "Certification of income can also be obtained through self-certification, 
meaning the clients of a project signs a Self-Certification of Family Size and 
Income Form, attached as Appendix E-1..." while page 4 of Appendix A states 
"Note: third-party verification of income is required; self-certification of income is 
not allowed." 

 
A3. Yes, Self-Certification is now allowed, therefore, please disregard the note in the 

National Objective section of Appendix A, which states:  “Note:  third-party verification of 
income is required; self-certification of income is not allowed.” 

 
Q4. Is renting out the facility for event space an allowable use? Doing so will provide 

vocational training opportunities for our youth who will be able to practicing 
culinary, food service and other job skills during the events, while generating 
revenue for the program. If this is allowable, would we have to transmit to the City 
its proportional share of income generated by event space rentals? 

 
A4. Yes.  However there would be limitations on the groups that may rent building space.  

Due to the complexity of the question, if funded, additional information would be required 
before the rental of space to a third party would be allowed.  If renting out the facility is 
allowed, a proportionate share of the income generated may be considered program 
income and would need to be transmitted to the City. 

 
Q5. Will one-time users or visitors of the facility be exempt from client income 

certification requirements?  The main purpose of our facility will be to serve youth 
who use the facility on a consistent/long-term basis and who meet the CDBG low 
to moderate income requirement. However, we also envision the facility acting as 
a resource to the community that will be visited by one-time users who we do not 
consider to be our clients. For example, a partner nonprofit may borrow facility 
space to host a community meeting or educational workshop, school-aged 
children may take a field trip to the facility to learn about cultural projects or 
sustainability, or we may hold a fundraiser attended by donors and community 
supporters. We would like to know if this broader population of visitors have to 
meet CDBG's 51% low to moderate income requirement. 
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A5.  With the limited information provided, it appears that the users would not be exempt from 
the client income certification requirements.  In addition, holding a fundraising event in a 
CDBG funded facility would be considered an ineligible use. 

 
Q6. Appendix C-4 "Statutory Worksheet" could not be located in the RFP package. 
 
A6. Attached is Appendix C-4. 
 
Q7. Can CDBG funds be used for a community center that will be open to the public 

that is not a separate, stand-alone building? 
 
A7. Yes.  A public building/facility may be assisted with CDBG funds even if it is part of a 

multiple use building containing ineligible uses, if: 
 

The CDBG eligible portion of the building/facility proposed for assistance will occupy a 
designated and discrete area within the larger building/facility; and 

 
The applicant can demonstrate the costs attributable to the facility proposed for 
assistance is separate and distinct from the overall costs of the multiple-use 
building/facility.  Allowable costs are limited to those attributable to the eligible portion of 
the building/facility only. 

 
Q8. Can anyone apply for funding through this RFP? 
 
A8. Eligible applicants for RFP No. RFP17C, as noted on page 3, are private nonprofit or 

City agencies.  Private individuals and for-profit entities may not apply for funding under 
this RFP. 

 
Q9. The “Consistency with City Goals and Priorities” section of Appendix A states 

that projects should address at least one Consolidated Plan activity and to list the 
Code(s) and Activity Description that applies to our project from the list on page 9 
of the RFP.  We could not find the list on page 9 of the RFP. 

 
A9. The list of Consolidated Plan Codes and Activity Descriptions are provided below: 
 

CODE ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION 
HO1 Provide services and outreach programs to connect persons and/or families 

experiencing homelessness with essential services including, but not limited to, case 
management; work readiness and employment assistance; one stop resource 
centers to access services; housing placement services; and legal services to 
support the City’s Housing First approach to ending homelessness. 

HO2 Development of housing to support the City’s Housing First approach to ending 
homelessness. 

HO3 Acquisition or renovation of a building to support the City’s Housing First approach to 
ending homelessness. 

HO4 Provide operating costs to existing transitional housing and supportive housing 
facilities for persons and/or families experiencing homelessness and/ or persons 
and/or families at risk of homelessness. 

HO5 Provide services to persons experiencing homelessness including case 
management; work readiness and employment assistance; one stop resource 
centers to access services; housing placement services; and legal services. 

HO6 Provide homeless prevention services including, but not limited to, emergency rental 
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and utility assistance to persons and/or families experiencing homelessness and/ or 
persons and/or families at risk of homelessness. 

HO7 Provide Re-housing services including, but not limited to, Tenant Based Rental 
Assistance to persons and/or families experiencing homelessness and/ or persons 
and/or families at risk of homelessness. 

HO8 Acquire, construct or renovate emergency and transitional shelters to allow continued 
shelter for persons and/or families experiencing homelessness and/ or persons 
and/or families at risk of homelessness. 

AH1 Development of new and preservation of existing affordable and special needs rental 
housing. 

AH2 Provide low-interest down payment loans and closing costs to LMI homebuyers. 
AH3 Provide low-interest loans to LMI homeowners to correct conditions in deteriorated 

homes. 
PS1 Provide services to seniors or persons with a disability to maintain independent living 

in the community. 
PS2 Provide support services to address emotional, social and cognitive development of 

young children; and life skills, remedial education, and occupational skills needs of 
older youth. 

PS3 Provide services to benefit victims of domestic violence. 
PS4 Provide services to benefit LMI persons, other than the homeless, in the following 

areas: food; outreach; case management; life skills, remedial and employment 
training and job development, creation and retention; legal counseling and 
assistance; literacy; budgeting, financial literacy and asset building; language access 
and limited English proficiency services; parenting and family strengthening; anger 
management; housing counseling and eviction prevention; foster family services; 
services to ex-offenders; transportation; transportation oriented development, micro-
enterprise loans and other applicable services.  

PF1 Acquire, construct or renovate a building to benefit LMI persons, other than the 
homeless, by providing services for seniors or persons with disabilities; by providing 
health care including mental health and substance abuse treatment;  by providing 
childcare or activities for youth; or by providing services to persons in need. 

PF2 Provide updated facilities and equipment for police, fire and emergency medical 
services and traffic engineering / safety measures in LMI communities  

CD1 Support the development of Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Areas in eligible 
areas. 

ED1 Provide microenterprise assistance. 
PI1 Construct or renovate facilities to comply with accessibility requirements. 
PI2 Acquire, construct, replace, or renovate city-owned facilities and infrastructure to 

benefit LMI communities 
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